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The Honorable Michael G. Whitaker 
Administrator 
Federal Aviation Administration 
800 Independence Avenue, S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20553-0002 

 

 
RE: Support of FAA-sanctioned Committees 
  
Dear Administrator Whitaker, 
The undersigned organizations request a meeting to discuss support for the Aviation 
Rulemaking Advisory Committee (ARAC) organized under the Federal Advisory 
Committee Act (FACA) and the Aviation Rulemaking Committees (ARCs) assigned tasks 
by the agency. 
There are three areas of concern— 

• Support from the Office of Chief Counsel when legal parameters and requirements 
are discussed. 

• The knowledge of agency personnel appointed to ARAC and ARCs in complying with 
the Administrative Procedure Act (APA). 

• Lack of direct personal acknowledgement from agency executive management 
personnel responsible for review and implementation, if appropriate, when a 
committee makes a recommendation. 

Aviation safety depends on open and transparent communications between the 
government and public. Whether perception or reality, the industry does not view the 
agency as open or transparent. Its actions supporting rulemaking activities need attention. 
The agency has tasked the industry to recommend solutions to many issues through the 
ARAC and ARCs. Although the agency has developed guidelines for supporting those 
efforts, they are not being honored to the extent necessary to ensure the best possible 
result. 
A recent exchange with the Office of Chief Counsel regarding ex parte communications 
and support of ARAC and ARCs provides an example of the deep divide between 
industry-provided support of FAA-sanctioned committees and the agency’s involvement. 
By the attached letters, an active trade association attempted to resolve issues related to 
external communications during informal rulemaking and the role the FAA’s Office of 
Chief Counsel previously played during sanctioned FACA and ARC deliberations. 
Rather than taking the information provided seriously and addressing the issues raised, 
the Chief Counsel’s responses merely affirmed the agency’s reluctance to engage when 
involvement is needed to obtain the best regulations in the interest of aviation safety. 
When reminded that representatives of the Office of Chief Counsel used to actively 
engage in FACA committees and ARCs down to the working group level, the office 
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admonished that attorneys are merely “observers.” Since the agency has many 
“observers” on its sanctioned committees that actively engage in presenting the agency’s 
perspective and knowledge, the Chief Counsel’s response is an obfuscation. 
As the request to the Office of Chief Counsel was ignored, we ask you to support obtaining 
the best recommendations from FACAs and ARCs by ensuring a knowledgeable 
representative from the Office of Chief Counsel’s Regulations or Aviation Litigation 
practice areas is fully engaged in the work the agency has tasked the industry to 
accomplish. Legal parameters are essential to the development of the best 
recommendations. Industry looks to the agency to ascertain those limitations when 
necessary to accomplish the agency’s tasks. The agency’s lawyers need to be subject 
matter experts in those parameters as they are certainly more than observers regarding 
legal requirements and processes. Refusing to engage in knowledgeable discussions of 
legal sufficiency during a FACA committee or ARC’s deliberations results in unusable 
recommendations and a waste of industry and agency time. 
To further strengthen the results of FAA-sanctioned committees, the undersigned ask that 
FAA members and “observers” on FACA committees and ARCs and their working groups 
receive formal training on rulemaking, i.e., drafting rules, supporting materials, and 
guidance under the APA. While individuals appointed by the Office of Primary 
Responsibility to draft informal rulemaking documents are given such training, FAA 
personnel appointed to its committees are not. When neither the industry nor FAA 
personnel understand the APA’s parameters, the agency is less likely to obtain the best 
possible recommendations. 
Finally, by ensuring appropriate executive management personnel are present at agency-
sanctioned committee meetings when recommendations are being considered, the FAA 
will bolster the committee and members of working and task groups that have devoted 
thousands of man-hours attempting to fulfill assigned tasks. 
Many of the undersigned are members of numerous FACA committees, working groups, 
and ARCs, with considerable experience in finding solutions for the agency or the 
industry. The knowledge and skills gained through formal education, on-the-job training, 
and experience have always been available to the agency when it was needed. Although 
neither you nor the Chief Counsel asked, the information provided is needed; therefore, 
we humbly request you listen. 
Please let us know if you wish further illustrations of our concerns or more information 
about potential solutions. 
Sincerely, 
Sarah MacLeod 
Executive Director 
Aeronautical Repair Station Association 
703.785.6605 
sarah.macleod@arsa.org 

Ric Peri 
Vice President, Government & Industry 
Affairs 
Aircraft Electronics Association 
202.589.1144 
ricp@aea.net 
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Robert Cush 
Director of Government Affairs 
Aircraft Mechanics Fraternal Association 
480.209.0473 
governmentaffairs@amfanatl.org 

Crystal Maguire 
Executive Director 
Aviation Technician Education Council 
703.548.2030 
crystal.maguire@atec-amt.org 

  
John Green 
Chief Technology Officer 
Chromalloy 
845.394.4903 
jwgreen@chromalloy.com 

Stephen Szpunar 
Vice President, Corporate Regulatory and 
Engineering 
HEICO Aerospace 
954.744.7524 
sszpunar@heico.com 

  
George Paul 
Vice President, Technical Services 
National Air Carrier Association 
703.358.8063 
gpaul@naca.aero 

Keith DeBerry 
Chief Operating Officer 
National Air Transportation Association 
202.923.6373 
kdeberry@nata.aero 

  
Bob Mabe 
Director of Regulatory Compliance 
HAECO Americas 
336.668.4410 
bob.mabe@haeco.aero 

John Goglia 
Chairman 
Professional Aviation Maintenance 
Association 
703.597.4502 
gogliaj@gmail.com 

  
Raju Tumarada 
ODA Lead Administrator 
United Airlines 
316.393.4567 
raju.tumarada@united.com 

 

 
Attachments: Letter to Chief Counsel’s Office – August 22, 2024 
 Assistant Chief Counsel for Regulations’ Response – August 28, 2024 
 Letter to Chief Counsel (w/out enclosures) – September 19, 2024 
 Chief Counsel Response – September 26, 2024 
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